
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Board of Commissioners Chairman Jack Smith


Presentation of the Government Finance Officers Association Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for Fayette 


County's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.


This is the 16th consecutive year Fayette County has received this award from GFOA.  CAFRs are judged by an impartial panel of 


finance professionals to determine compliance with the high standards of the program, including demonstrating a consecutive "spirit of 


full disclosure" to clearly communicate an entity's financial story. 


 


GFOA is a prestigious professional organization serving approximately 16,000 government finance professionals.  It is considered the 


gatekeeper for monitoring and recommending improvements to government financial reporting and consistently influences changes in 


reporting standards that "raise the bar" for government entities. 


 


Chairman Jack Smith will make the presentation to the County's Finance Department Staff.


Acknowledge Fayette County's receipt of this award.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, February 11, 2010








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Finance Patricia Pryor


Representatives from Cherry, Bekaert, and Holland, LLP., the County's auditing firm, will present the results of the Fiscal Year 2009 Audit 


to the Board.


Cherry, Bekaert, and Holland,LLP recently completed the independent audit of the County for the 2009 fiscal year.  Patricia Pryor, who is 


the managing partner for the audit, will be presenting the results of the audit to the Commissioners.


None


N/A


No


Yes


Yes


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, February 11, 2010








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Fire and Emergency Services Deputy Chief Thomas F. Bartlett


Consideration of amendments to the Fire and Emergency Services Reimbursement Training Agreement and a request that a similar 


agreement be authorized for new 911 Communications employees and authorization for Chief McCollough to sign any such agreements 


on behalf of the County.


Fire and Emergency Services have had an agreement in place for several years that enables the county to recover some costs the 


county has expended for training and outfitting new employees, should the employee leave the county's employment after the county has 


invested time and resources in that employee.  Chief McCullough wishes to change the monetary amount and length of time the 


agreements would be in place. 


 


Chief McCullough would like to have the Board to authorize the implementation of this procedure with 911 Communications as well.  Both 


the agreements have been reviewed and rewritten by the county attorney. 


 


These agreements were discussed with the Board at their February 3 Workshop.


Approval for amendments to the agreement currently in place for Fire and EMS employees, and also to authorize a similar employment 


agreement to be instituted for newly hired  911 Communications employees.  Authorization for Chief McCollough to sign any such 


Agreements on behalf of the County.


Not Applicable.


Yes Wednesday, February 3, 2010


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Old BusinessThursday, February 11, 2010







 1 


REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN  


FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA AND 


 


__________________________________  


(Name of Employee) 


 
This Reimbursement Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into this ___ day of 201__, 


between Fayette County, Georgia, a political subdivision of the State of Georgia (“County”) and 
the above-named individual (“Employee”).  


 
WHEREAS, the Employee acknowledges and agrees that permitting the Employee to 


participate in the training offered by the County is a substantial financial investment by the 
County and a financial burden on the County’s taxpayers.  It is reasonable and appropriate for 
the Employee to reimburse the County for the Costs incurred by the County if the Employees 
ceases employment with the County subject to the terms and conditions stated in this Agreement;  


 
WHEREAS, the Employee acknowledges and agrees that the Equipment provided by the 


County to assist/enable the Employee to provide firefighting services is the County’s property 
and must be returned to the County, save only normal wear and tear, at the conclusion of the 
Employee’s employment; and  


 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the following mutual promises, the parties 


agree as follows:  
 
I. DEFINITIONS  


 
A. “Costs” means the necessary funds, in addition to salary and benefits, to cover the full cost of 
tuition and book/supply costs in order for the Employee to complete the Fire Fighter- National 
Professional Qualification certification as well as a certified Fire Fighter in Georgia from Fire 
Fighters Standards and Training Council. 
 
B. “Good Standing” shall mean the employee is in good standing in accordance with the Fayette 
County Policy and Procedures Manual and is not on any sort of disciplinary probation or 
suspension. 
 
C. “Equipment” means all bunker gear, clothing, equipment, keys, radios, or other materials the 
County provides the Employee to perform the firefighter, EMT, and/or paramedic services.  
 
II. COUNTY OBLIGATIONS  


 
For as long as this Agreement remains in effect, and the Employee complies with the 


terms of this Agreement, the County agrees to pay the Costs and to provide the Employee such 
Equipment as the County deems necessary for the Employee to perform the job for the County.  
 







 2 


III. EMPLOYEE OBLIGATIONS  


 
A. The Employee shall be in good standing at all times and shall faithfully perform all duties and 
obligations established by the County.  
 
B. The Employee shall return all County Equipment in good condition, save only normal wear 
and tear, at the conclusion of the Employee’s employment in accordance with the policies and 
procedures of the County.  
 
IV. REIMBURSEMENT OF COSTS  


 
The Employee has no obligation to reimburse the County for the Costs if he/she remains 


in good standing and performs three (3) years of continuous employment with the County after 
the date the Employee obtains the Fire Fighter-National Professional Qualification certification 
as well as becoming a certified Fire Fighter in Georgia from Fire Fighters Standards and 
Training Council or if the Employee is terminated from employment by the County without 
cause. 
 


If the Employee fails to perform Employee’s obligations for three (3) consecutive years, 
the Employee shall reimburse the County for the cost of the training, the agreed upon value of 
this cost being $3,000.  Amount owing for reimbursement shall be pro-rated on a monthly basis 
for the amount of time the Employee did perform Employee’s obligations under this Agreement, 
which amounts to a reduction in the amount owed the County of $83.33 for each month of 
satisfactory Employment.   
 
V. REIMBURSEMENT FOR EQUIPMENT  


 
The Employee shall reimburse the County for the replacement cost of all Equipment not returned 
to the County upon termination of his/her employment, regardless of the length of time the 
Employee has served the County or the reason for the termination.  
 
VI. TIMING FOR PAYMENT OF COSTS OR FOR EQUIPMENT  


 
All Costs, and the replacement value of any unreturned Equipment, owed under this 


Agreement shall, without prior notice, presentment, demand or other action by the County, 
become due and payable in three equal monthly payments as follows:  
 


The first payment shall be made on or before the 30th day after the date the Employee’s 
employment is terminated (“Termination Date”);  
 


The second payment shall be made on or before the 60th day after the Termination Date; 
and,  
 


The third payment shall be made on or before the 90th day after the Termination Date.  
 







 3 


If the Employee fails to pay the Costs and the replacement value of any unreturned 
Equipment in full in accordance with the requirements of this section, the Employee agrees that 
the total amount owed shall be immediately due and payable in full to the County. The County 
may immediately take legal or equitable action to in a court of competent jurisdiction in Fayette 
County, Georgia to collect the total amount owed under this Agreement.  
 
VII. NO CONTRACT OF EMPLOYMENT  


 
This Agreement does not create, and shall not be construed to create, an express or 


implied contract of employment for any period of time. The Employee shall at all times be an 
employee at will.  The Employee’s employment may be terminated by the Employee or the 
County at any time for any or no reason.  
 
VIII. MISCELLANEOUS  


  
Georgia law governs this Agreement. This Agreement is the entire agreement between 


the parties and there are no oral or collateral agreements or understandings. This Agreement may 
only be amended by a document signed by the parties. If any provision is held invalid or 
unenforceable, all other provisions shall continue in full force and effect. Waiver of a breach of 
this Agreement shall not operate or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach of this 
Agreement. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties and 
their legal representatives, successors, and permitted assigns. This Agreement is not intended to, 
and shall not, confer rights on any person or entity not named as a party to this Agreement.  In 
any dispute arising from or relating to this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be awarded its 
reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses, including any attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses 
incurred in collecting upon any judgment, order or award. This Agreement may be executed in 
several counterparts and by facsimile, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which 
shall constitute one and the same instrument.  
 
FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA       
 
 
By: __________________________    Date: _______________  
 M. Allen McCullough 
 
EMPLOYEE  
 
 
By: ___________________________  Date: _______________ 







 1 


REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN  


FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA AND 


 


__________________________________  


(Name of Employee) 


 
This Reimbursement Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into this ___ day of 201__, 


between Fayette County, Georgia, a political subdivision of the State of Georgia (“County”) and 
the above-named individual (“Employee”).  


 
WHEREAS, the Employee acknowledges and agrees that permitting the Employee to 


participate in the training offered by the County is a substantial financial investment by the 
County and a financial burden on the County’s taxpayers.  It is reasonable and appropriate for 
the Employee to reimburse the County for the Costs incurred by the County if the Employees 
ceases employment with the County subject to the terms and conditions stated in this Agreement;  


 
WHEREAS, the Employee acknowledges and agrees that the uniforms and equipment 


provided by the County to assist/enable the Employee to provide 911 communication services is 
the County’s property and must be returned to the County, save only normal wear and tear, at the 
conclusion of the Employee’s employment; and  


 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the following mutual promises, the parties 


agree as follows:  
 
I. DEFINITIONS  


 
A. “Costs” means the necessary funds, in addition to salary and benefits, to cover the full cost of 
tuition and book/supply costs in order for the Employee to complete the 911 Cadet Training 
Program (in house as well) and successful completion of the POST (Peace Officers Standards 
and Training) for the 911 Communications Officer. 
 
B. “Good Standing” shall mean the employee is in good standing in accordance with the Fayette 
County Policy and Procedures Manual and is not on any sort of disciplinary probation or 
suspension. 
 
C. “Equipment” means all uniforms, headsets, radios, or other items issued to Employee.  
 
II. COUNTY OBLIGATIONS  


 
For as long as this Agreement remains in effect, and the Employee complies with the 


terms of this Agreement, the County agrees to pay the Costs and to provide the Employee such 
Equipment as the County deems necessary for the Employee to perform the job for the County.  
 







 2 


III. EMPLOYEE OBLIGATIONS  


 
A. The Employee shall be in good standing at all times and shall faithfully perform all duties and 
obligations established by the County.  
 
B. The Employee shall return all County Equipment in good condition, save only normal wear 
and tear, at the conclusion of the Employee’s employment in accordance with the policies and 
procedures of the County.  
 
IV. REIMBURSEMENT OF COSTS  


 
The Employee has no obligation to reimburse the County for the Costs if he/she remains 


in good standing and performs three (3) years of continuous employment with the County after 
the date the Employee completes the 911 Cadet Training Program (in house as well) and 
successful completion of the POST (Peace Officers Standards and Training) for the 911 
Communications Officer, or if the Employee is terminated from employment by the County 
without cause. 
 


If the Employee fails to perform Employee’s obligations for three (3) consecutive years, 
the Employee shall reimburse the County for the cost of the training, the agreed upon value of 
this cost being $3000.00.  Amount owing for reimbursement shall be pro-rated on a monthly 
basis for the amount of time the Employee did perform Employee’s obligations under this 
Agreement, which amounts to a reduction in the amount owed the County of $83.33 for each 
month of satisfactory Employment.   
 
V. REIMBURSEMENT FOR EQUIPMENT  


 
The Employee shall reimburse the County for the replacement cost of all Equipment not returned 
to the County upon termination of his/her employment, regardless of the length of time the 
Employee has served the County or the reason for the termination.  
 
VI. TIMING FOR PAYMENT OF COSTS OR FOR EQUIPMENT  


 
All Costs, and the replacement value of any unreturned Equipment, owed under this 


Agreement shall, without prior notice, presentment, demand or other action by the County, 
become due and payable in three equal monthly payments as follows:  
 


The first payment shall be made on or before the 30th day after the date the Employee’s 
employment is terminated (“Termination Date”);  
 


The second payment shall be made on or before the 60th day after the Termination Date; 
and,  
 


The third payment shall be made on or before the 90th day after the Termination Date.  
 







 3 


If the Employee fails to pay the Costs and the replacement value of any unreturned 
Equipment in full in accordance with the requirements of this section, the Employee agrees that 
the total amount owed shall be immediately due and payable in full to the County. The County 
may immediately take legal or equitable action to in a court of competent jurisdiction in Fayette 
County, Georgia to collect the total amount owed under this Agreement.  
 
VII. NO CONTRACT OF EMPLOYMENT  


 
This Agreement does not create, and shall not be construed to create, an express or 


implied contract of employment for any period of time. The Employee shall at all times be an 
employee at will.  The Employee’s employment may be terminated by the Employee or the 
County at any time for any or no reason.  
 
VIII. MISCELLANEOUS  


  
Georgia law governs this Agreement. This Agreement is the entire agreement between 


the parties and there are no oral or collateral agreements or understandings. This Agreement may 
only be amended by a document signed by the parties. If any provision is held invalid or 
unenforceable, all other provisions shall continue in full force and effect. Waiver of a breach of 
this Agreement shall not operate or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach of this 
Agreement. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties and 
their legal representatives, successors, and permitted assigns. This Agreement is not intended to, 
and shall not, confer rights on any person or entity not named as a party to this Agreement.  In 
any dispute arising from or relating to this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be awarded its 
reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses, including any attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses 
incurred in collecting upon any judgment, order or award. This Agreement may be executed in 
several counterparts and by facsimile, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which 
shall constitute one and the same instrument.  
 
FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA       
 
 
By: __________________________    Date: _______________  
 M. Allen McCullough 
 
EMPLOYEE  
 
 
By: ___________________________  Date: _______________ 





		Fire and EMS- Reimbursement Agreement Agenda Request File.pdf

		Fire and EMS- Reimbursement Agreement Backup

		Microsoft Word - Fire and EMS- Firefighters Reimbursement Agreement Document.pdf

		Microsoft Word - Fire and EMS- 911 _Communications Reimbursement Agreement Document _Revised_








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Planning & Zoning Pete Frisina/Tom Williams


Approval of Resolution 2010-09 adopting the Fayette County 2009 Annual Report on Fire Services Impact Fees, including the 


Comprehensive Plan Amendments for updates to the Capital Improvements Element and Short-Term Work Program for FY2010 through 


FY2014.


As required by the Georgia Development Impact Fee Act and the Minimum Planning Standards, Fayette County, in collaboration with 


Tyrone, Brooks, and Woolsey, has prepared the "Fayette County 2009 Annual Report on Fire Services Impact Fees (FY2009), including 


the Comprehensive Plan amendments for updates to the Capital Improvements Element and Short-Term Work Program (FY2010-


FY2014)."  Public hearings were held by the Fayette County Board of Commissioners on September 24, 2009, and by the three (3) towns 


in the following weeks.  Each entity approved the report for transmittal to the Atlanta Regional Commission for coordination of State and 


Regional review. 


 


We have received notification of compliance from the Georgia Department of Community Affairs and the Atlanta Regional Commission 


for the 2009 Fire Services Impact Fee Report, including amendments to the Capital Improvements Element and Short-Term Work 


Program of the Comprehensive Plan.  The next step is for each local government to adopt this report and for the adopting resolutions to 


be transmitted to the Atlanta Regional Commission.  The deadline for this adoption and transmittal of the adopting resolutions to the 


Atlanta Regional Commission is February 28, 2010.  These actions are required for each government to retain its Qualified Local 


Government status.


Approval of a Resolution to adopt the "Fayette County 2009 Annual Report on Fire Services Impact Fees (FY2009), including the 


Comprehensive Plan amendments for updates to the Capital Improvements Element and Short-Term Work Program (FY2010-FY2014)."


Not applicable.


Yes Thursday, September 24, 2009


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, February 11, 2010







COUNTY OF FAYETTE; 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2010 - 09 
 


A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE “FAYETTE COUNTY 2009 ANNUAL 
REPORT ON FIRE SERVICES IMPACT FEES (FY2009), INCLUDING 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS FOR UPDATES TO THE 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS ELEMENT AND SHORT-TERM WORK 
PROGRAM (FY2010 – FY2014)” 


 
WHEREAS, Fayette County in collaboration with the towns of Tyrone, Brooks and 


Woolsey, has prepared the “Fayette County 2009 Annual Report On Fire Services Impact 
Fees (FY2009), Including Comprehensive Plan Amendments For Updates to the Capital 
Improvements Element and the Short-Term Work Program (FY2010–FY2014);” and 
 


WHEREAS, the annual update was prepared in accordance with requirements of the 
Georgia Development Impact Fee Act and the Minimum Planning Standards and Procedures 
for Local Comprehensive Planning established by the Georgia Planning Act of 1989; and 
 


WHEREAS, on the 24th day of September 2009, the Fayette County Board of 
Commissioners conducted a public hearing on the 2009 Fire Services Impact Fee Report and 
proposed Comprehensive Plan amendments; approved that report and authorized transmittal 
to the Atlanta Regional Commission for coordination of regional and state review; and  
 


WHEREAS, the Regional and State reviews have been completed and a notification 
of compliance has been received from ARC.  
 


BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED THAT the Fayette County Board of Commissioners 
does hereby adopt the “Fayette County 2009 Annual Report on Fire Services Impact Fees 
(FY2009) Including Comprehensive Plan Amendments for Updates to the Capital 
Improvements Element and the Short-Term Work Program (FY2010 – FY2014).” 
 


ADOPTED by the Fayette County Board of Commissioners this 11th day of February 
2010.  
       


FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


    
  


________________________ 
      Jack R. Smith, Chairman 
      Board of Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 


 
 
  
____________________________ 
Carol Chandler, County Clerk 

















































































































































		Planning and Zoning- Impact Fees Agenda Request with Backup.pdf

		Planning and Zoning- Impact Fees Agenda Request File.pdf

		Planning and Zoning- Impact Fees Backup



		Microsoft Word - Resolution 2010 - 09










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Sheriff's Office Captain Michelle Walker, if needed


Approval of request from the Sheriff's Office to amend the Overtime Budget for the Criminal Investigations Division by $248.80 for 
reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various Federal Agencies.


The Fayette County Sheriff's Office Criminal Investigations Division receives monies for reimbursement of overtime funds from various 
federal programs for personnel assigned to work investigations in cooperation with these agencies.


Authorization from the Board of Commissioners to amend the Overtime Budget Account for the Fayette County Sheriff's Office Criminal 
Investigations Division (10030321-511300) by $248.80 which has been received from various federal programs for the 2009-2010 Fiscal 
Year.  This would revise the Overtime Regular Budget Account to $123,153.39.


No funding is required for this request.


No


No


Yes


No


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, February 11, 2010








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Sheriff's Office Captain Michelle Walker, if needed


Approval of request from the Sheriff's Office to amend the Overtime Budget for the Criminal Investigations Division by $528.70 for 
reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various Federal Agencies.


The Fayette County Sheriff's Office Criminal Investigations Division receives monies for reimbursement of overtime funds from various 
federal programs for personnel assigned to work investigations in cooperation with these agencies.


Authorization from the Board of Commissioners to amend the Overtime Budget Account for the Fayette County Sheriff's Office Criminal 
Investigations Division (10030321-511300) by $528.70 which has been received from various federal programs for the 2009-2010 Fiscal 
Year.  This would revise the Overtime Regular Budget Account to $123,682.09.


No funding is required for this request.


No


No


Yes


No


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, February 11, 2010








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Water System Tony Parrott


Consideration of Water Committee and staff recommendation to allow Eco-South, Inc., to perform Lake McIntosh wetlands mitigation on 


a site known as the Flint River site, at a cost of $416,840.


The Lake McIntosh Reservoir project requires extensive mitigation work.  Eco-South has performed mitigation work for Fayette County 


for many years and are familiar with the requirements and specification of the Army Corps of Engineers. The Scope of the work for this 


project includes the following components: A) Construction Staking/Layout and Material Mobilization - $43,325.00, B) Complete 800 LF of 


Priority 1 channel restoration - $97,611.00, C) Complete 31 acres of wetland restoration - $86,449.00, D) Complete 29 acres of wetland 


enhancement - $61,132.00, E) Plant Material and Planting (20,536 stems) - $128,323.00.


Approval of the Eco-South Contractor Agreement and approval for the Chairman of the Board to sign the document.


Lake McIntosh funds


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


New BusinessFebruary 11, 2010











 
 
 


CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 
 


Between 
 


Fayette County, Georgia 
 


and 
 


Eco-South, Inc. 
and   


 Sports Turf Company, Inc. 
 







 2


ARTICLE 1.0 
INTRODUCTION 


 
1.1 This Agreement is made by and between Fayette County (“OWNER”), whose principal 
offices are located at 140 Stonewall Ave, W., Fayetteville, Georgia, 30214 and Eco-South, Inc., 
(“Contractor”), whose principal offices are located at 1165 Church Street 
Covington, Georgia  30014, and Sports Turf Company, Inc. (“Contractor”), whose principal 
offices are located at 1487 Blackdirt Road, Whitesburg, Georgia 30185, referred to collectively 
as “the Parties”. 
 
1.2 It is the intent of this Agreement to establish the terms and conditions upon which the 
Contractor agrees to perform work as described hereinafter: 
 
Constructing wetlands on County owned property in compliance with the permit as issued by the 
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers and as further described in accompanying attachments, schedules 
or task orders where applicable. 
 


ARTICLE 2.0 
TERM OF AGREEMENT 


 
2.1 This Agreement shall be effective on March 1, 2010 (Effective Date) and terminate on 
March 1, 2011 (Expiration Date), unless earlier terminated or extended in accordance with the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 


ARTICLE 3.0 
ATTACHMENTS AND SCHEDULES 


 
3.1 The following attachments and schedules are hereby made a part of this Agreement:  
 
Attachment A – Mitigation Work Plan, Flint River Site 
  


ARTICLE 4.0 
CONTRACT TYPE 


 
4.1 Compensation Agreement. Contractor will be compensated for work performed on a 
fixed price basis.  The total value shall be $415,840.00 dollars. 
 


ARTICLE 5.0 
ORDER OF PRECEDENCE 


 
5.1 Conflicts.  Where a conflict is found to exist between the text of this Agreement and any 
attachments or schedules, the following order of precedence shall be followed: 
 


1. The detailed statement of work in Attachment A 
 







 3


2. The text of this Contractor Agreement 
 
3. All other attachments or schedules. 


 
ARTICLE 6.0 


ADMINISTRATION 
 
6.1 Notices and Contractual Correspondence. All notices given pursuant to this Agreement 
shall reference the Contractor Agreement Number and shall be delivered personally or sent by 
certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, as follows: 
 
For:  Eco-South, Inc.    For:  Fayette County, Georgia 


1165 Church Street   140 Stonewall Ave., W 
Covington, Georgia  30014  Fayetteville, GA. 30214 
Attn: Kent Campbell   Attn: Jack Krakeel 


 
6.2 Submission of Deliverables and Invoices.  All deliverables including reports, other 
technical correspondence shall be delivered to the technical POC on each Task Order. Invoices 
shall be delivered to the following address, and all documents must reference the Contractor 
Agreement No., and Task Order Number: 
 
Fayette County, Georgia 
140 Stonewall Ave., W 
Fayetteville, GA. 30214 
Attn: Jack Krakeel  
 


ARTICLE 7. 0 
INVOICING AND TERMS OF PAYMENT 


 
7.1 Invoicing.  The Contractor will invoice OWNER in a form and supported by 
documentation as OWNER may require.  The work shall be completed in the following stages: 
 
WO 1. Construction Staking/Layout and Material Mobilization $  43,325.00 
 
WO 2. Complete 800 LF of Priority 1 channel restoration  $  97,611.00 
 
WO 3. Complete 31 acres of wetland restoration   $  86,449.00 
 
WO 4. Complete 29 acres of wetland enhancement   $  61,132.00 
 
WO 5. Plant Material and Planting (20,536 stems)   $128,323.00 
 
Contractor will submit invoices based on 50, 75 and 100 percent completion of the each 
individual work order.  However, Contractor may not submit invoices no more frequently than 
monthly for completed work.  OWNER will hold a 10% retainage on each invoice.     
 







 4


7.2 Interim Payments. OWNER will provide payment to Contractor within 30 days from 
receipt of an acceptable invoice.   
 
7.3 Retainage Payment.  Retainage payment will be paid to Contractor upon the U.S. Army 
Corp of Engineer’s acceptance of the work as being in substantial compliance with the mitigation 
plan and upon completion of all work, receipt of all deliverables, and submittal of an acceptable 
final invoice from the Contractor marked as follows: 
 
FINAL INVOICE, PAYMENT BY OWNER CONSTITUTES FULL ACCORD AND 
SATISFACTION FOR ALL AMOUNTS DUE FOR WORK PERFORMED UNDER THIS 
AGREEMENT. 
 
Final payment will be made by OWNER within 30 calendar days of receipt of an acceptable 
invoice.   
 


ARTICLE 8.0 
CONTRACTOR SCOPE OF WORK 


 
8.1 Upon acceptance of this agreement by both parties, Contractor agrees to perform the 
work described in Attachment A in exchange for the compensation from OWNER stated in 
Article 4.1.  Contractor will provide all materials, equipment and labor necessary to complete the 
tasks as described in the Article 7.0. 
 


ARTICLE 9.0 
OBLIGATIONS OF CONTRACTOR 


 
9.1 Independent Contractor.  Contractor is an independent Contractor and nothing contained 
herein shall be construed as constituting any other relationship with OWNER, nor shall it be 
construed as creating any relationship whatsoever between OWNER and Contractor’s 
employees. Accordingly, Contractor shall not be entitled as a result of this Agreement to any 
present or future benefits provided by OWNER or its affiliates to its employees. Nor will 
Contractor be considered an employee for purposes of any tax or contribution levied by the 
federal or any state or local government. Contractor has sole authority and responsibility to hire, 
fire, and otherwise control its employees. Contractor agrees to comply with all laws, rules, 
regulations, or ordinances applicable to an employer. 
 
9.2 Performance.  Contractor warrants that services shall be performed in a professional and 
businesslike manner. Further, the Contractor shall conduct all activities associated with this 
Agreement in a lawful and ethical manner, shall use its best efforts to enhance the good 
reputation and best interests of OWNER, and shall refrain from any conduct which will cause, or 
tend to cause, any injury to OWNER, its business, or its reputation.  
 
The standard of care applicable to Contractor’s services will be the degree of skill and diligence 
normally employed by professionals performing the same or similar services. The Contractor   
will correct any services not meeting this standard without additional compensation. If such 







 5


deficiencies are not corrected in a timely manner, OWNER may cause the same to be corrected 
and deduct costs incurred from Contractor’s compensation. 
 


Subject to the above stated standard of care, the Contractor agrees that: 
 


1. All materials including, but not limited to, designs, and plans furnished for the work 
shall have clear title; and 


 
2. Such materials are free from valid claim for copyright or patent infringement.  


 
3. All grading work performed hereunder shall be warranted to withstand any stream 


flow or flood event that does not exceed a “2x bankfull discharge” for a period of five 
(5) years after completion of all grading work.  Contractor shall repair any and all 
failure that results from less than a “2x bankfull discharge” at no additional cost to 
OWNER during the warranty period.  The surety’s warranty period shall be limited to 
one year after completion of all grading work. 


 
4. All plants are warranted for one year after the date of planting.  If any plants die 


within one (1) year of planting, then Contractor agrees to replace said plants at no 
additional cost to OWNER. 


 
9.3 Insurance. The Contractor shall maintain commercial and professional insurance standard 
and appropriate for the services the Contractor provides under this Agreement. Contractor agrees 
to indemnify, defend, and hold OWNER harmless from any and all claims, liabilities, 
obligations, governmental penalties, fines, and causes of action of whatsoever nature, including 
injury to or death of any person or damage to or destruction of any property, or court costs or 
attorney’s fees resulting from any and all negligent acts or omissions of Contractor or any sub 
Contractor to this Agreement or any of their respective directors, officers, partners, principals, 
employees, or agents. 
 
9.4 Permits, Licenses, and Fees.  Contractor will obtain and pay for all permits and licenses 
required by law that are associated with the Contractor’s performance of the work. 
 
9.5 Confidentiality.  Contractor will not disclose the nature of the services provided or 
engage in any other publicity or public media disclosures with respect to the services provided 
without the prior written consent of OWNER. 
 
9.6 Access to Records.  Contractor will maintain accounting records, in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles and practices, to substantiate all invoiced amounts. 
Records will be available for examination by OWNER during Contractor’s normal business 
hours for a period of three years after Contractor submits its final invoice.  
 
9.7 Completion and Acceptance.  Contractor will provide with the delivery of final work 
products an explicit statement indicating that the Contractor considers the work complete.  
Within thirty (30) working days of receipt of such notice, OWNER will determine if the work 







 6


has been satisfactorily completed and provide notice to the Contractor. Should the work product 
be determined to be unsatisfactory, the Contractor will take action and resubmit the corrected 
work until work is determined to be acceptable to OWNER. Acceptance of work by OWNER 
shall not limit or affect the responsibilities and liabilities of the Contractor under any other 
paragraphs of this Agreement. 
 
9.8 Performance Bond. Contractor shall provide a performance bond for 100% the amount stated 
in Article 4.0, Section 4.1 of this Agreement.  The Bond shall name OWNER as Obligee.  
Further, the Bonding Company providing surety must be authorized to do business by the 
Georgia Insurance Department and provide an original or certified copy of their Certificate of 
Authority or Power of Attorney, and must be listed in the Department of Treasury’s publication 
of companies holding Certificates of Authority as acceptable surety on Federal Bonds and 
acceptable reinsuring companies. 
 


ARTICLE 10.0 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 


 
10.1  Proprietary Information.  All proposals, reports, correspondence, and other 
information, written or oral, such as business strategies, themes, concepts, approaches, etc., 
developed by and furnished to Contractor either by OWNER and/or OWNER’s client, or others 
in connection with the Services provided are, and will remain, the property of OWNER and/or 
OWNER’s client, and may not be copied or otherwise reproduced or used in any way except in 
connection with the Services, or disclosed to third Parties or used in any manner detrimental to 
the interests of OWNER or OWNER’s client. This Article is valid for a period of three (3) years 
from the date of termination of this Agreement. 
 


10.1.1 The provision of this Article shall not apply to data or information in the public 
domain at the time it was disclosed, or known to the Contractor at the time of disclosure, or 
which becomes known to the Contractor independently of the disclosing party without breach of 
this Agreement, or which is independently developed by the Contractor.  
 


10.1.2 The Contractor shall not be liable for the disclosure of such data or information 
pursuant to judicial or governmental action. 
  
10.2   Force Majeure.  Contractor will not be liable to OWNER for delays resulting from labor 
strikes, riots, war, acts of governmental authorities, extraordinary weather conditions, or other 
natural catastrophe, or any other cause beyond the control or the Contractor. 
 
10.3   Suspension.  The Contractor will, upon notice from OWNER, suspend delay or interrupt 
all or part of the services. In such event, the Contractor will resume services upon notice from 
OWNER and an appropriate extension of time will be mutually agreed upon and added to the 
Contractor’s time of performance, without any increase in price if the services are to be 
performed at a fixed fee. 
 







 7


10.4   Termination.  OWNER may terminate this Agreement for its convenience upon notice 
to the Contractor. Subject to the other provisions of this Agreement governing payment for 
Services, OWNER will pay Contractor for the Services rendered in accordance with this 
Agreement through the termination date. Contractor shall submit a detailed invoice of the 
Services to OWNER.  Contractor shall not be entitled to profit or other compensation for 
Services not performed.  In accordance with O.C.G.A. § 36-60-13 (1) this Agreement shall 
terminate absolutely and without further obligation on the part of the county at the close of the 
calendar year in which it was executed and at the close of each succeeding calendar year for 
which it may be renewed as provided in this Code section; (2) this Agreement shall 
automatically renew unless the Board of Commissioners votes to terminate this Agreement on or 
before December 1 of the year in which it is to be terminated.  The total obligation of the County 
for the calendar year of execution and for each year of renewal shall not exceed the price shown 
in the payment schedule as provided herein.  Title to any supplies, materials, equipment, or other 
personal property shall remain in the Contractor until fully paid for by the County. 
 
10.5   OWNER may terminate this Agreement for cause if: 
 


A. Contractor fails to perform its obligations under this Agreement, and does not 
affect a prompt and timely cure; 


B. Contractor undertakes a general assignment for the benefit of its creditors; 
C. Contractor files a bankruptcy petition; 
D. a receiver is appointed for Contractor’s assets; or, 
E. all or a substantial part of Contractor’s assets are attached. 


 
10.5.1 If OWNER terminates this Agreement for cause, then OWNER may, at its option: 


 
A. Perform the Services in any manner it considers appropriate; and 
B. deduct any additional costs OWNER incurs from any amount that would 


otherwise be due Contractor under this Agreement, including, without limitations, 
OWNER’s attorney’s fees related to Contractor’s default, regardless of whether 
proceedings are instituted to enforce the provisions of this Agreement . 


 
10.6   Changes. OWNER may add or delete work from the statement of work. If such 
adjustment results in an increase or decrease in the cost or time of performance an equitable 
adjustment will be negotiated by the Parties. All changes to this Agreement shall be in writing 
and signed by both Parties. 
 
10.7   Conflict of Interest.  Each Party shall notify the other immediately upon identification of 
any potential conflict of interest as generally described in FAR 9.5 which may arise from the 
provision of services to any other organization, government entity, or corporation through the 
term of this Agreement. This notification shall include a description of actions which the 
involved Party has taken or proposes to take to avoid, mitigate, or neutralize the actual or 
potential conflict of interest. 
 







 8


10.8   Waiver of Rights. The failure of either party to insist on a strict performance of any of the 
provisions of this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of any rights or remedies that such 
party may have for any subsequent breach, default, or non-performance on the part of the other. 
 
10.9  Captions.  The captions used in this Agreement are for purposes of convenience only and 
form no part of this Agreement. In no event shall they be deemed to limit or modify the text of 
this Agreement. 
 
10.10 Severability. The invalidity or unenforceability of any portion(s) or provision(s) of this 
Agreement shall in no way affect the validity or enforceability of any other portion(s) or 
provision(s) hereof. Any invalid or unenforceable provision(s) shall be severed from the 
Agreement and the balance of the Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if the 
Agreement did not contain the particular portion(s) or provision(s) held to be invalid and/or 
unenforceable. 
 
10.11 Choice of Law. This Agreement shall be interpreted and the rights of the Parties 
construed in accordance with laws of the state of Georgia. 
 
10.12 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the Parties. 
All prior Agreements, representations, statements, negotiations, and understandings are 
superseded. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by persons who are properly 
authorized to legally bind these respective organizations. Each party acknowledges that it has 
read the Agreement, understands it, and agrees to be bound by its terms. 
 
Eco-South, Inc. 
 
By ___________________________ 
Title:  
 
Sports Turf Company, Inc, 
 
By ___________________________ 
Title:  
 
Fayette County Commission Chairman  
 
By ___________________________ 
Title:  
 
Date ____________________________ 
 
 
 





		Water System- Eco-South Agenda Request File.pdf

		Water System- Eco-South Backup










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Water System Tony Parrott


Approval of a recommendation from the Water Committee that the Memorandum of Agreement between the Metropolitan North Georgia 


Water Planning District and the County be amended to allow the continuation of the Toilet Rebate Program until all the committed funds 


have been expended.


In February 2008, the Water System began participation in the Metropolitan North Georgia Water Planning District for the Toilet Rebate 


Program.  The program began with a commitment of $100,000.00 to be credited to customer accounts.  At this time, after credits to 


customer accounts and the administrative fee paid to the District, the Water System has $20,850.00 left of the committed funds. There 


have been 615 toilet rebates for a total of $70,050.00.  Total administrative fees spent are $9,100.00.


Approval to continue participating in the Toilet Rebate Program with the Metropolitan North Georgia Water Planning District and approval 


for the Chairman of the Board to sign the Amendment of Memorandum of Agreement.


Funds are credits posted to customer accounts, except the Administrative fee, which is budgeted.


Yes January, 2008, January 2009


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


ConsentFebruary 11, 2010













		Water System- Toilet Rebate Agenda Request File.pdf

		Water System- Toilet Rebate Backup






MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


January 28, 2010
 7:00 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette County’s


Website at www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then “County Commission


Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single topic can be heard.


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on Wednesday, January 28, 2010, at 7:00
p.m. in the Commissioners’ Chambers in the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville,
Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Jack Smith, Chairman
Herb Frady, Vice Chairman
Lee Hearn
Robert Horgan
Eric Maxwell 


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant


 Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk


______________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order by Chairman, Invocation, and Pledge to the Flag.


Chairman Smith called the Board of Commissioners to order at 7:03 p.m.
Commissioner Hearn offered the invocation.
Chairman Smith led the Board and audience in the pledge of allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda.


Commissioner Horgan moved to accept the agenda as published.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  No discussion
followed and the motion passed unanimously.


PUBLIC HEARING:


A. Consideration of Petition Number 1218-09, Southern Pine Plantations Commercial Group, LLC., Owners, and
Seyfarth Shaw, LLP, Agent, request to rezone 27.46 acres from O-I, A-R, and C-C to C-C to develop
Commercial Uses, and consideration of Petition Number 1219-09, request to rezone 5.37 acres from O-I, A-R
and C-C to O-I to develop Office Uses.  These properties are located in Land Lots 17 and 18 of the 6th District
and front on SR 74 South.  These petitions were tabled at the Public Hearing held on December 10, 2009.







Minutes
January 28, 2010
Page 2


Community Development Director Pete Frisina read the Introduction to Public Hearings document explaining how
the Public Hearings would be conducted.  A copy of the Introduction to Public Hearings, identified as “Attachment
1", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


Attorney Carl Westmoreland, representing the applicant for both petitions being heard, spoke about the need to
approve  the petitions and  agreed to staff’s recommended conditions.  


Commissioner Horgan asked what uses would be allowed if the petitions were approved.  Attorney Westmoreland
replied that anything allowed as permitted uses under the requested C-C and O-I zoning classifications would be
considered with the exception of those uses expressly prohibited by the recommended conditions as detailed by
the Planning Commission and county staff.


Commissioner Maxwell recalled that in the year 2000 there was discussion about deeding approximately 50 acres
to the County to protect the Brechin Park neighborhood that is located on the south side of the development, but
the discussion was never  formalized into a written document or deed meaning the property still remains with the
applicant.  He said he understood there would be a deed held in trust for the transfer of 50 acres from Southern
Pines to Fayette County but that there would be a reversion clause for the portion of the property next to Brechin
Park.  He explained the reversion clause would allow the applicant to place a septic system on the property next
to the Brechin Park neighborhood if the septic field on the north side of the property ever had a problem.  Attorney
Westmoreland said Commissioner Maxwell’s understanding was correct, that a detailed letter explaining the
situation was provided to County Attorney Scott Bennett, and that he wanted it be understood that if the rear tract,
referred to as Tract 4, had to be used for a septic field there would be a grassed buffer area provided adjacent to
the neighborhood.


Commissioner Maxwell asked if a deed had been prepared and Attorney Westmoreland replied that a deed had
been prepared and is being held in trust by Mr. Bowden, an attorney in Macon who is representing Southern Pine
Plantations, until a Final Plat is recorded and the property can be transferred to Fayette County.  Discussion
followed.     


No one else spoke in favor of or in opposition to the petitions.  


Commissioner Horgan moved to approve Petition Number 1218-09 subject to the two recommended conditions.
Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  Further discussion followed and the motion passed unanimously.  A
copy of the requests for Petitions 1218-09 and 1219-09, including recommended conditions, Staff Analysis and
Investigation, and maps, identified as “Attachment 2", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.
A copy of the Ordinance and Resolution approving Petition 1218-09, identified as “Attachment 3", follow these
minutes and are made an official part hereof.


Commissioner Horgan moved to approve Petition Number 1219-09 subject to the one recommended condition.
Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  No discussion followed and the motion passed unanimously.  A copy
of the Ordinance and Resolution approving Petition 1219-09, identified as “Attachment 4", follow these minutes and
are made an official part hereof.


B. Consideration of Petition Number RP-047-09, Amos and Marcia Grimes, Owners, and Randy Boyd, Agent,
request approval to revise a recorded plat for Lot 8 Block D of Fayette Village (1.031 acres), by adding Lot
117 of the Landings, (1.030 acres), for development of a single-family residential lot totaling 2.061 acres.
This R-40 property is located in Land Lot 71, 7th District and fronts on Oak Ridge Drive.







Minutes
January 28, 2010
Page 3


Mr. Randy Boyd represented Amos and Marcia Grimes and explained why the two lots should be combined into
one.  Discussion followed.  No one else spoke in favor of or in opposition to the petition.
Commissioner Frady moved to approve Petition Number RP-047-09.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.
No discussion followed and the motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 5",
follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


Jacqueline Peoples: Ms. Peoples told the Board that Barnes & Noble Bookstore is closing in May due to losing their lease,
and asked if the Board would be able to help prevent the closing.  She said she would also go to the City of Fayetteville with
the same concern and request.  She appealed to the Board to foster community involvement in order to save the store.  


CONSENT AGENDA:


Commissioner Horgan moved to approve Consent Agenda Items 1-6.  Commissioner Frady seconded the motion .  The
motion passed unanimously.


1. Approval of Resolution Number 2010-04 establishing qualifying fees for 2010 Elections in Fayette County.
A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 6", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.


2. Approval of recommendations by the Tax Assessor’s Office regarding requests for tax refunds.  A copy of
the request, identified as “Attachment 7", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


3. Approval of staff’s request to acquire training material for 911 Communications personnel from Professional
Pride, Inc., at a cost of $8,800.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 8", follows these minutes
and is made an official part hereof.


4. Approval of Fayette County Water Committee’s 2010 meeting schedule.  A copy of the request, identified
as “Attachment 9", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


5. Ratification of contract between Brad Cole Construction Company, Inc. and Fayette County for the
construction of Lake McIntosh Dam and Reservoir in the amount of $8,233,255.12.  A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment 10", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


6. Approval of January 6, 2010 Board of Commissioners minutes.


NEW BUSINESS:


C. Consideration of appointment to the Fayette County Board of Elections for a four-year term beginning
February 1, 2010 and ending January 31, 2014.


Chairman Smith moved to postpone the appointment until a future meeting.  Commissioner Frady seconded the
motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously. 







Minutes
January 28, 2010
Page 4


ADMINISTRATOR”S REPORT


2010 Board Retreat: County Administrator Jack Krakeel reminded the Commissioners that their retreat would begin tomorrow
morning at 8:30 a.m. in the Commissioners’ Conference Room at the Stonewall Complex.  


ATTORNEY’S REPORT


MBIA Capital Management Corporation Contract: County Attorney Scott Bennett reminded the Board of its September
10, 2009 agreement to engage MBIA Capital Management Corporation.  He explained that MBIA would be an investment
advisor for Fayette County who would advise the county on where to deposit and invest county funds in order to increase
its return on investments.  He concluded by asking the Board to authorize the Chairman to sign the contract with MBIA to
engage their services. 


Commissioner Horgan moved to authorize the Chairman to sign a contract with MBIA Capital Management Corporation,
engaging their services.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  No discussion followed and the motion passed
unanimously.  A copy of the MBIA Capital Management Corporation Contract, identified as “Attachment 11", follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.


Contract with Piedmont Paving Corporation: County Attorney Scott Bennett recalled that on November 12, 2009 the Board
awarded a bid in the amount of $540,000 to Piedmont Paving Incorporated for multiple intersection improvements; particularly
at the intersection of Goza and Antioch Roads. He stated that he had the contract, had reviewed the payment, performance,
and insurance bonds, and that the contract was ready for the Chairman’s signature should the Board give its authorization.


Commissioner Horgan moved to authorize the Chairman to sign a contract with Piedmont Paving Incorporated for $540,000.
Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  No discussion followed and the motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the
Piedmont Paving Corporation contract, identified as “Attachment 12", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.


Resolution Numbers 2010-05, 2010-06, 2010-07 and 2010-08: County Attorney Scott Bennett presented four resolutions
to the Board of Commissioners for their approval.  He explained that they were based on ongoing negotiations between
Fayette County’s Public Works Department, who is trying to obtain needed right-of-way for improvements to the intersections
of Antioch and Goza Roads and Antioch and McBride Roads, and landowners who are unwilling to provide the needed land.
He said the resolutions would authorize the County Attorney to either negotiate for the right-of-way by contract or to condemn
the land if it becomes necessary.  He added that these resolutions were needed in order to continue the intersection
improvement projects:


The four resolutions are as follows:


• Resolution 2010-05: Resolution to authorize the acquisition of 3,634 square feet of land, more or less, and 8,731
square feet of temporary construction easement, more or less, in Land Lot 7 of the 5th District, Fayette County,
Georgia, by negotiated contract or condemnation pursuant to provisions of the O.C.G.A. Section 32-3-4 through
Section 32-3-19 for road construction or improvement at the intersection of Antioch and McBride Roads.


Commissioner Horgan moved to authorize the Chairman to sign Resolution 2010-05.  Commissioner Hearn
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of Resolution 2010-05,
identified as “Attachment 13", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.







Minutes
January 28, 2010
Page 5


• Resolution 2010-06: Resolution to authorize the acquisition of 8,810 square feet of temporary construction
easement, more or less, in Land Lot 7 of the 5th District, Fayette County, Georgia, by negotiated contract or
condemnation pursuant to provisions of O.C.G.A. Section 32-3-4 through Section 32-3-19 for intersection
improvement plans for the intersection of Antioch Road and McBride Road.


Commissioner Horgan moved to authorize the Chairman to sign Resolution 2010-06.  Commissioner Hearn
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of Resolution 210-06,
identified as “Attachment 14", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


• Resolution 2010-07: Resolution to authorize the acquisition of 1,385 square feet of land, more or less, and 13,510
square feet of temporary construction easement, more or less, in Land Lots 249 and 250 of the 4th District, Fayette
County, Georgia, by negotiated contract or condemnation pursuant to provisions of O.C.G.A. Section 32-3-4 through
Section 32-3-19 for the intersection improvement located at the Antioch and McBride Roads. 


Commissioner Horgan moved to authorize the Chairman to sign Resolution 2010-07.  Commissioner Hearn
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of Resolution 2010-07,
identified as “Attachment 15", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


• Resolution 2010-08: Resolution to authorize the acquisition of 2,366 square feet of temporary construction
easement, more or less, in Land Lot 232 of the 4th District, Fayette County, Georgia, by negotiated contract or
condemnation pursuant to provisions of O.C.G.A. Section 32-3-4 through Section 32-3-19 for intersection
improvement plans for the intersection at Antioch and Goza Roads.


Commissioner Horgan moved to authorize the Chairman to sign Resolution 2010-08.  Commissioner Hearn
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of Resolution 2010-08,
identified as “Attachment 16", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


STAFF REPORTS


There were no Staff Reports.


BOARD REPORTS


There were no Board Reports.


EXECUTIVE SESSION


Litigation: County Attorney Scott Bennett informed the Board of litigation to be discussed in Executive Session.


Chairman Smith recognized that some Boy Scouts were in the audience, commented that they were working on Citizenship
in the Community merit badge, and thanked them for their attendance.   


Commissioner Hearn moved to adjourn into Executive Session for the purpose of discussing litigation.  Commissioner Horgan
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  


The Board adjourned into Executive Session at 7:45 p.m. and returned to Official Session at 8:03 p.m.







Minutes
January 28, 2010
Page 6


EXECUTIVE SESSION AFFIDAVIT


Commissioner Horgan moved to authorize the Chairman to sign an Executive Session Affidavit stating litigation was
discussed.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy
of the Executive Session Affidavit, identified as “Attachment 17", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


ADJOURNMENT


No further business came before the Board and Chairman Smith adjourned the January 28, 2010 Board of Commissioner’s
meeting  at 8:03 p.m.


___________________________________                                __________________________________________
       Floyd L. Jones, Deputy Clerk                          Jack R.  Smith, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia,
held on the 11th day of February, 2010.


___________________________________
      Floyd L. Jones, Deputy Clerk








The AgendaThe AgendaThe AgendaThe Agenda
Board of Commissioners
     February 11, 2010


 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda.


PRESENTATION/RECOGNITION:


A. Representatives from Cherry, Bekaert, and Holland, LLP, the County’s
auditing firm, will present the results of the Fiscal Year 2009 Audit to the
Board.


B. Presentation of the Government Finance Officers Association Certificate
of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for Fayette
County’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2008.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


CONSENT AGENDA:


1. Approval of Resolution 2010-09 adopting the Fayette County 2009
Annual Report on Fire Services Impact Fees, including the
Comprehensive Plan Amendments for updates to the Capital
Improvements Element and Short-Term Work Program for FY 2010 - FY
2014.


2. Approval of request from the Sheriff’s Office to amend the Overtime
Budget for the Criminal Investigations Division by $248.80 for
reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various Federal
Agencies. 


3. Approval of request from the Sheriff’s Office to amend the Overtime
Budget for the Criminal Investigations Division by $528.70 for
reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various Federal
Agencies. 


4. Approval of a recommendation from the Water Committee that the
Memorandum of Agreement between the Metropolitan North Georgia
Water Planning District and the County be amended to allow the
continuation of the Toilet Rebate Program until all the committed funds
have been expended. 


5. Approval of January 28, 2010 Board of Commission minutes.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Jack Smith, Chairman


Herb Frady, Vice Chairman
Lee Hearn


Robert Horgan
Eric Maxwell


i


STAFF
Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney


Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk


Floyd Jones, Deputy Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month at 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: (770) 305-5200
Fax: (770) 305-5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
February 11, 2010
Page Number 2


OLD BUSINESS:


C. Consideration of amendments to the Fire and Emergency Services Reimbursement Training Agreement
and a request that a similar agreement be authorized for the new 911 Communications employees.  This
item was last discussed at the February 3, 2010 Workshop Meeting.


NEW BUSINESS:


D. Consideration of Water Committee and staff recommendation to allow Eco-South, Inc. to perform Lake
McIntosh wetlands mitigation on a site known as the Flint River site, at a cost of $416,840.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT
ATTORNEY’S REPORT
STAFF REPORTS
BOARD REPORTS
EXECUTIVE SESSION
ADJOURNMENT





